TOWN OF GRISWOLD BUILDING DEPT.

SEP 12 2016

RECEIVE

**AGREEMENT** 

BETWEEN

THE TOWN OF GRISWOLD

-and-

LOCAL 1303-133 OF COUNCIL #4
AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL
EMPLOYEES
AFL-CIO

(TOWN HALL EMPLOYEES)

JULY 1, 2014 - JUNE 30, 2019

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

AGREEMENT	
ARTICLE I - RECOGNITION	1
ARTICLE II - UNION SECURITY AND PAYROLL DEDUCTION	1
ARTICLE III - SENIORITY	2
ARTICLE IV - PROMOTIONS AND TRANSFERS	5
ARTICLE V - HOURS OF WORK, OVERTIME	5
ARTICLE VI - WAGES AND CLASSIFICATIONS	7
ARTICLE VII - TRANSPORTATION AND TRAVEL	9
ARTICLE VIII - HOLIDAYS	9
ARTICLE IX - VACATIONS	10
ARTICLE X - SICK LEAVE	10
ARTICLE XI - UNION BUSINESS LEAVE	11
ARTICLE XII - FUNERAL LEAVE	12
ARTICLE XIII - MILITARY LEAVE AND JURY DUTY	12
ARTICLE XIV - INSURANCE	
ARTICLE XV - PENSION	14
ARTICLE XVI - DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURE AND DISMISSAL	15
ARTICLE XVII - DISCRIMINATION	
ARTICLE XVIII - SCOPE	16
ARTICLE XIX - MISCELLANEOUS	16
ARTICLE XX - LONGEVITY	18
ARTICLE XXI - GRIEVANCE PROCDURE	18
ARTICLE XXII - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	20
ATICLE XXIII - SAVINGS CLAUSE	
ARTICLE XXIV - REOPENER CLAUSE	21
ARTICLE XXV - DURATION	
APPENDIX A – PAYROLL DEDUCTION	23
APPENDIX B - HOURLY WAGE SCHEDULE	24

APPENDIX C - INSURANCE SUMMARY OF BENEFITS	. 28
APPENDIX D - REQUEST FOR VACATION FORM	. 35
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) RE: ERIN HOUK	. 36
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) RE: COMP. TIME	. 38
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) RE: BEVIN/AUBIN	. 40
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) RE: SALARIED EMPLOYEES	. 43
SIDE LETTER RE: HOLIDAY PAY	. 48

#### **AGREEMENT**

This Agreement entered into as of the first day of July, 2014 by and between the Town of Griswold, hereinafter referred to as the "Employer" and the Griswold Town Hall Employees Local 1303-133 of Council 4, AFSCME, AFL-CIO, hereinafter referred to as the "Union".

#### **ARTICLE I - RECOGNITION**

#### Section 1.1

The employer recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive representative with respect to all matters of wages, hours and other conditions of employment for all employees of the Griswold Town Hall hired to work and working fifteen (15) hours per week on a regular basis per year, but excluding all elected officials.

#### Section 1.2

All collective bargaining shall be conducted by authorized representatives of the Union and authorized representatives of the Town.

#### Section 1.3

A part-time employee shall be defined as an employee working less than 20 hours per week. Part-time employees are not eligible for insurance benefits contained in Article XIV of the contract. Employees who are regularly scheduled to work less than thirty five (35) hours per week shall receive a pro-rated share of all other benefits (excluding insurance) contained in the contract.

#### ARTICLE II - UNION SECURITY AND PAYROLL DEDUCTION

#### Section 2.1

All employees in the bargaining unit shall, as a condition of employment, become a member of the Union in good standing, or pay a service charge for the duration of this Agreement or any extension thereof.

#### Section 2.2

Upon receipt of a signed authorization form from the employees involved, a copy of which is attached to this Agreement as Appendix A, the Employee agrees to deduct from the employee's Pay, each payroll period, such dues and/or service fees as determined by the Union.

#### Section 2.3

The amount will be certified by a responsible Union Officer in writing and may be raised or lowered by the Union at any time upon notification by said officer to the Employer.

#### Section 2.4

Such payroll deductions, as provided herein, shall be remitted to the Council #4 Office of the Union by the fifteenth (15<sup>th</sup>) day of the next month following the month in which such dues and/or service fees were deducted along with a list of names of employees from whom the deductions have been made.

#### Section 2.5

The provisions of this Article, as outlined above, constitute an agency shop and not a closed Union shop agreement.

#### Section 2.6

The Union shall indemnify and hold the Town harmless for any damages, fees, costs or assessments incurred by reason of carrying out the deduction provisions of this Article, including but not limited to the claim of assignment of wages to the Union for membership dues. Notwithstanding the provisions of this Article, The Town reserves the right to protect the confidentiality of its records and the disclosure of these records shall be limited to matters directly related to any dispute that the Union is required to defend under this provision.

#### ARTICLE III - SENIORITY

#### Section 3.1

Seniority, according to this Agreement shall consist of the length of accumulated continuous paid service each employee has with the Employer as a bargaining unit employee.

#### Section 3.2

If an employee is scheduled for elimination or layoff and said person is senior and qualified in accordance with the functions of said position said employee shall have the right to bump into an equal to or lower classification (based on salary).

#### Section 3.3

Seniority shall be the factor used to determine vacation preference, preference for promotion and/or transfer, in the event more than one bargaining unit employee, who applies, meets the qualifications for a posted position layoff and recall and in all other matters where consideration for seniority may be considered a factor.

#### Section 3.4

Seniority is forfeited under any of the following circumstances:

- 1) Voluntary resignation
- 2) Discharge for just cause
- Failure to return to work within fifteen (15) days of the mailing of notification of recall, by registered mail, to the last known address of a laid-off employee.
- 4) Failure to show up for work for three (3) consecutive days without notifying the Town, except in cases of emergency.

#### Section 3.5

A corrected seniority list, which includes each employee by name, classification and rate of pay, will be provided by the employer to each employee during the months of March and September.

#### Section 3.6

In the event a layoff is proposed, or pending, the Employer shall inform the Union President no less than ten (10) working days prior to any proposed layoff actions.

#### Section 3.7

Layoffs shall take effect in the following manner:

- a) Seasonal employees.
- b) Temporary employees.
- c) Part-time employees working less than fifteen (15) hours.
- d) <u>Bargaining unit employees</u>. A bargaining unit member whose job is eliminated and/or who is laid off may exercise the following bumping rights:

#### **GROUP A:**

Assessor

Bookkeeper

**Building Official** 

Director of Parks and Recreation / Youth & Family Services

Director of Senior Citizens Center

Planner

Sanitarian

Social Worker

#### **GROUP B:**

Assistant Assessor

Assistant Bookkeeper

Assistant Tax Collector

Assistant Town Clerk

Assistant to the Building Official

Assistant to the Director of Senior Citizens Center

Assistant to the Town Planner

Clerk Full-Time

Clerk Part-Time

Custodian

Assistant to the Director of Parks and Recreation / Youth and Family Services

Secretary to Assessor

Senior Citizens Bus Driver

A Group A employee may bump the least senior employee within Group A provided he/she is qualified to perform immediately the duties and responsibilities of the position into which he/she is bumping. If the employee is not qualified to bump into the least senior Group A position, he/she may then bump the least senior employee in Group B, provided he/she is qualified to perform immediately the duties.

A Group B employee may bump the least senior employee within Group A and B provided he/she is qualified to perform immediately the duties and responsibilities of the position into which he/she is bumping.

#### Section 3.8

No seasonal, temporary or part-time employees will be used while regular employees are on layoff.

#### Section 3.9

Recall shall be by seniority preference with the most senior employee on layoff recalled first, etc.

#### Section 3.10

Newly hired employees shall serve a probationary period of six (6) months. During the probationary period the employee shall be subject to all clauses of this Agreement, but shall be on probation and may be disciplined and/or discharged by the Town without recourse to the grievance and arbitration provisions provided herein, and shall not receive Holiday pay.

#### Section 3.11

For the purposes of paid leave, longevity and seniority, all time worked for the Town of Griswold under any State or Federally funded program, excluding workfare, shall be

included in determining the leave, longevity and seniority.

#### **ARTICLE IV - PROMOTIONS AND TRANSFERS**

#### Section 4.1

All vacant positions within the bargaining unit shall be posted for a period of no less than five (5) days in each area serviced by bargaining unit members prior to the issuance of any public notice of said vacancy.

#### Section 4.2

- a) All vacancies shall be filled by the most senior qualified employee requesting such vacancy prior to hiring from the outside. The employee appointed to such position shall serve a promotional probationary period of ninety (90) calendar days. During the ninety (90) calendar day promotional probationary period, the most senior qualified employee shall receive the middle pay rate. Upon successful completion of the promotional probationary period, the employee shall receive the one year pay rate.
  - When an employee is retained in a vacancy or new position beyond probation, then he/she shall be considered permanent and allocated to said position.
- b) No employee will be required to undergo testing for any position which may have been reevaluated, renamed, realigned, or is similar in nature to a position for which the employee has previously qualified.

#### Section 4.3

Any employee who receives a promotion under the provisions outlined herein shall be returned to the position he/she previously held in the event the position is not funded for the fiscal year immediately following the promotion.

#### ARTICLE V - HOURS OF WORK, OVERTIME

#### Section 5.1

The basic work week is thirty-five (35) hours, Monday through Friday.

#### Section 5.2

The basic work week shall be seven (7) hours per day Monday through Friday, between the hours of 8:30 A.M. and 4:00 P.M., with one-half (1/2) hour unpaid for lunch. Employees may be required to engage in activities necessitated by their classification outside of the regularly scheduled work hours, i.e., evening meetings.

The Town reserves the right to change the basic schedule (with two weeks written notice to the Union) to the following: The work week shall be seven (7) hours per day Monday through Wednesday, between the hours of 8:30 a.m. and 4:00 p.m., with one-half (1/2) hour unpaid for lunch. On Thursday the hours shall be extended to 6:30 p.m. and on Friday the hours shall be reduced to 1:00 p.m. This extended hour program for Thursdays shall not affect Senior Center employees who shall remain on the basic work week schedule set forth in sentence 1 of this section. Employees working the extended hours set forth above for Thursday shall not be entitled to receive overtime pay under section 5.3. Employees working the extended hours set forth above for Thursday shall receive a third (3<sup>rd</sup>) fifteen (15) minute break period which will be staggered among department employees in order to insure coverage for citizens coming into said departments. Employees working the reduced hours will only receive one (1) fifteen (15) minute break. Leave time taken under the Thursday extended day schedule set forth above shall be calculated in hourly increments. Finally, the Town shall have the absolute right to return to the basic work week schedule set forth in sentence 1 of this section provided it gives the Union two (2) weeks written notice of said changes.

#### Section 5.3

Employees who are assigned to work outside their regularly scheduled work hours by the First Selectman or because of requirements of their positions in meeting public needs, shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half their hourly rate for all hours worked outside their regularly scheduled work hours (in no cases less than seven (7) consecutive hours in any one day) with the approval of First Selectman. The First Selectman must approve all employees' attendance at evening meetings.

#### Section 5.4 (Salaried Exempt Employees)

Effective July 1, 2016, Article V, Sections 5.1, 5.2 and 5.3 are no longer applicable to the full-time positions of Town Planner, Assessor, Director of Parks and Recreation/Youth and Family Services and Director of Senior Citizens Center and Social Services. Rather, the following language shall apply to Employees.

The full-time positions of Town Planner, Assessor, Director of Parks and Recreation/Youth and Family Services and Director of Senior Citizens Center and Social Services Agent ("exempt employees") agree that they perform as executive, administrative and/or professional employees and, as such, are expressly exempted by the Fair Labor Standards Act and related state laws from the requirement of paid overtime. These exempt employees may be required to regularly engage in activities necessitated by their classification outside of normal business hours, i.e., evening meetings. These exempt employees are accountable to the Town and the public and, as such, employees shall use the time card system utilized by all other bargaining unit members. Failure to maintain accurate time records may result in discipline.

The work schedules for the Town Planner, Assessor, Director of Parks and Recreation/Youth and Family Services and Director of Senior Citizens Center and Social Services Agent shall be solely determined by the Town. The Town will notify the employee(s) and Union of any changes to the work schedule with two (2) weeks prior notice.

Employees must comply with Article IX and Article X of the CBA regarding the use of vacation and sick leave. The parties agree that Employees shall work during normal work hours as determined by the Town and must use their vacation and sick leave in the same manner as all other bargaining unit members.

Exempt employees shall submit to the First Selectman or his/her designee a listing of regular night meetings which they are required to attend. The First Selectman or his/her designee must approve all employees' attendance at evening meetings. Moreover, in the event any exempt employee must perform work on weekends consistent with scheduled events, the First Selectman or his/her designee may, with two (2) weeks prior notice, alter the employee's regular work schedule for that week.

#### Section 5.5

Hourly non-exempt employees who are assigned to work on a holiday by the First Selectman or because of the requirement of their positions in meeting the needs of the public shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half their hourly rate for all such time worked in addition to the holiday pay.

#### Section 5.6

The Town Hall custodian will work a five (5) day forty (40) hour week, Monday through Friday commensurate, with his/her existing schedule.

#### Section 5.7

Any Hourly non-exempt employee assigned or called in to work outside of, but not contiguous with, the end of their regularly scheduled work hours shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours pay at the applicable rate for any such assignment or call-in.

#### Section 5.8

All employees shall receive a fifteen (15) minute break between 10:00-11:30 a.m. and 2:00-3:00 p.m. Said break shall be taken at a time that does not interfere with the operation of the Town. The beak must be confirmed by the employees' supervisor and cannot be taken so as to be combined with the employees' lunch break.

#### ARTICLE VI - WAGES AND CLASSIFICATIONS

#### Section 6.1

Effective and retroactive to July 1, 2014, all positions of the bargaining unit shall receive a wage increase of 2.5%. Effective July 1, 2015, all positions of the bargaining unit shall receive a wage increase of 2.5%.

a) The parties have agreed, consistent with state and federal wage and hour laws, to convert the hourly, non-exempt positions of full-time Town Planner, Assessor,

Director of Parks and Recreation/Youth and Family Services and Director of Senior Citizens Center and Social Services Agent to salaried exempt positions as of July 1, 2016. In order to transition these employees, the parties have negotiated, during the reopener, salaries that consider the amount of premium pay and/or overtime previously earned by these positions under the applicable Collective Bargaining Agreement.

b) Effective and retroactive to July 1, 2016, the following hourly non-exempt positions of the bargaining unit shall receive a wage adjustment of fifty cents (\$0.50) and a general wage increase of 2.25%. Effective July 1, 2017, the following hourly non-exempt positions of the bargaining unit shall receive a wage adjustment of fifty cents (\$0.50) and a general wage increase of 2.25%. Effective July 1, 2018, the following hourly non-exempt positions of the bargaining unit shall receive a wage adjustment of fifty cents (\$0.50) and a general wage increase of 2.5%:

Assistant Assessor, Assistant Bookkeeper, Assistant Tax Collector, Assistant Town Clerk, Assistant to the Building Official, Assistant to the Director Parks and Recreation/Youth & Family Services, Assistant to the Director of the Senior Citizens Center, Assistant to the Town Planner, Bookkeeper, Clerk (Full-Time), Clerk (Part-Time), Sanitarian, Secretary to Assessor, Senior Citizens Bus Driver, and Social Worker,

c) Effective and retroactive to July 1, 2016, the following hourly non-exempt positions of the bargaining unit shall receive a general wage increase of 2.25%. Effective July 1, 2017, the following hourly non-exempt positions of the bargaining unit shall receive a general wage increase of 2.25%. Effective July 1, 2018, the following hourly non-exempt positions of the bargaining unit shall receive a general wage increase of 2.5%:

Custodian and Part-time Building Official.

#### Section 6.2

The wage schedule will be attached as Appendix B to this Agreement.

#### Section 6.3

Classifications for newly created positions including, for example, required skills, knowledge, abilities, education, experience, training, licenses and/or certifications; duties performed; and rates of pay shall be discussed with the Union in accordance with the provisions of the Municipal Employee Relations Act prior to the filling of any such newly created position.

#### Section 6.4

Existing classifications of positions shall continue to exist unless altered or otherwise amended by mutual agreement or if removed for budgetary or operational reasons.

Said decision shall not be arbitrary or capricious.

#### Section 6.5

Any employee assigned to work in a higher classification for fifteen (15) consecutive work days shall receive the pay rate for that classification for all such hours worked.

#### **ARTICLE VII - TRANSPORTATION AND TRAVEL**

#### Section 7.1

Employees required to use their own personal vehicle for official business shall be compensated at the rate set by the Internal Revenue Service.

#### **ARTICLE VIII - HOLIDAYS**

#### Section 8.1

Each employee shall receive the following holidays off with full pay:

New Year's Day	Memorial Day	Thanksgiving Day
Martin Luther King Day	Fourth of July	Day after Thanksgiving
President's Day	Labor Day	Christmas Day
Floating Holiday	Columbus Day	November Election Day
Good Friday	Veteran's Day	

Any other day declared a holiday by State or Federal Statute or Town offices are closed.

#### Section 8.2

- a) Any holiday which occurs on a Saturday will be celebrated the proceeding Friday.
- b) Any holiday which occurs on a Sunday will be celebrated on the next day (Monday).

#### Section 8.3

Newly hired employees will not be eligible to receive any holiday off with pay which occurs during their probationary period.

#### **ARTICLE IX - VACATIONS**

#### Section 9.1

In each fiscal year a full time employee shall receive earned vacation leave with pay according to the following schedule:

After one (1) year

Ten (10) days

After five (5) years

Fifteen (15) days

One additional day for each year after five (5) years to a maximum of twenty (20) days annually.

#### Section 9.2

Each employee shall receive vacation with pay on the Friday prior to vacation in accordance with existing practice.

#### Section 9.3

Vacation time shall be used during the fiscal year and shall not accumulate from year to year.

#### Section 9.4

Employees may take vacation at any time during the year with prior approval of the employee's supervisor, First Selectman, or First Selectman's designee. In the case of vacation leave requests of five (5) days or more, however, employees should request approval from the First Selectman at least two (2) weeks in advance; the First Selectman retains the discretion, nonetheless, to approve such requests when made within the two (2) week period.

#### **ARTICLE X - SICK LEAVE**

#### Section 10.1

- a) Each employee shall earn sick leave with pay at the rate of one and 1/6 day of sick leave for each month of service or 14 days per year to one hundred twenty (120) days.
- b) An employee, upon retirement per CMERS, resignation, termination or death, shall receive, on the basis of his/her current wages, full compensation for any of his/her accumulated sick leave. Employees hired after July 1, 2014 shall only be entitled to payout of up to sixty (60) days.

c) In the event of an employee's death, his/her spouse, and/or minor children and/or estate shall receive on the basis of the employee's wages, full compensation for any of the employee's unused accumulated sick leave.

#### Section 10.2

Sick leave shall be considered to be the absence from duty with pay for the following reasons:

- a) Illness or injury, except where arising solely out of or in the course of employment by an employer other than the Town.
- b) When the employee is required to undergo medical, optical or dental treatment and only when this cannot be accomplished on off-duty hours.
- c) When the serious illness of a member of the employee's immediate family requires his/her personal attendance, if supported by medical certificate. For the purposes of this section, immediate family is defined in the same manner as set forth in Section 12.1.
- d) Medical Certification of illness/injury and ability to return to work from a medical care provider shall be provided in the event of an absence due to illness or injury of five (5) or more days. In addition, in the case of a pattern of absenteeism, a medical certificate may be requested by the First Selectman. Nothing in this paragraph or section, however, shall preclude or prohibit the Town from requesting additional information or documentation in accordance with state and/or federal law, such as the ADA, Workers' Compensation Act, etc.

#### Section 10.3

The Town will comply with the Family and Medical leave Act.

#### **ARTICLE XI - UNION BUSINESS LEAVE**

#### Section 11.1

The First Selectman or his/her designated representative shall authorize reasonable leave so that designated Union members may bargain collectively for rights and privileges, when such sessions are scheduled during working hours.

#### Section 11.2

Two Union Officers and/or members of the Union shall be allowed the necessary time off without loss of pay for the purposes of resolving grievances.

#### Section 11.3

Two (2) Union Officers, as designated by the Union, shall be allowed a combined total of six (6) days leave annually, without loss of pay, for the purposes of attending official union seminars, conferences, conventions, and/or legislative hearings.

#### **ARTICLE XII - FUNERAL LEAVE**

#### Section 12.1

In the event of death in any employee's or employee's spouse's immediate family, any employee shall be granted up to five (5) working days of leave without loss of pay. For the purposes of this section, immediate family is defined as: spouse, mother, father, brother, sister, daughter, son, mother-in-law, father-in-law, and the same step relations. Three (3) working days with pay shall be allowed for the death of grandparent, grandchild, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, son-in-law and daughter-in-law, aunt and uncle, and same step-relations. One (1) working day with pay shall be allowed per annum to attend the funeral or memorial service for an individual not referenced herein. The employee must provide the First Selectman or his/her designee with proof of the employee's relationship to the deceased for funeral leave of three (3) or five (5) days. If more time is needed, personal or vacation time may be taken.

#### Section 12.2

Funeral leave in addition to leave granted in Section 12.1 above may be granted by the First Selectman or his/her designated representative.

#### ARTICLE XIII - MILITARY LEAVE AND JURY DUTY

#### Section 13.1

Time off for military service shall be afforded in accordance with applicable law.

#### Section13.2

Any employee called to report for jury duty will be allowed the necessary time off. The employer shall make up the difference between the pay received for jury duty and the employee's regular pay, if any, and in accordance with applicable law.

#### **ARTICLE XIV - INSURANCE**

#### Section 14.1

The Employer shall provide to employees and their dependents the insurance coverage set forth in Appendix C. The Employer shall also provide the following:

- a) \$20,000 Group Life Insurance for each employee.
- b) \$5,000 Group Life Insurance for each employee who retires from the town until age 65 when only \$2,000 group life insurance will be provided until age 80.

#### Section 14.2

Effective July 1, 2014, the Town will pay 87% of the medical benefit premium with the employees paying 13% through regular payroll deductions. Effective July 1, 2015, the Town will pay 85% of the medical benefit premium with the employees paying 15% through regular payroll deductions. Effective July 1, 2016, the Town will pay 84% of the medical benefit premium with the employees paying 16% through regular payroll deductions. Effective July 1, 2017, the Town will pay 83% of the medical benefit premium with the employees paying 17% through regular payroll deductions. Effective July 1, 2018, the Town will pay 82% of the medical benefit premium with the employees paying 18% through regular payroll deductions.

The Town shall calculate and develop allocation rates annually, which shall take into account and cover all costs of the plan set forth in Appendix C. Annual employee contributions, as described above, shall be based on the annual allocation rates.

#### Section 14.3

Change of Carriers: The Town reserves the right to change or provide alternate insurance carriers, health maintenance organizations, or benefit levels or to self-insure as it deems appropriate for any form or portion of the insurance coverage referred to in this article, so long as the new coverage and benefits are substantially equivalent to the conventional insurance set forth above. For purposes of this paragraph, substantially equivalent means disruption not less than 90% of network services then-currently available.

The Town shall provide all of the insurance programs outlined above or substantial equivalents to each of its retired employees at their own expense until such age that the retiree is eligible for Medicare. No employee hired on or after July 1, 2014 shall be eligible to purchase and/or participate in retiree health insurance.

In addition, the Town may offer one and/or more alternate health insurance plans as an option(s) to the primary health insurance plan, including, but not limited to, an HDHP/HSA. The Town reserves the right to determine the terms, conditions, cost shares, and all other substantive aspects of any alternate plan.

#### Section 14.4

Each employee may elect to not participate in the health insurance coverage. Any such election not to participate shall be made in writing and except as herein provided shall be irrevocable for the remainder of the applicable fiscal year.

Employees shall be paid a stipend of fifty percent (50%) of the cost of the premiums for coverage for which such employee would otherwise have been eligible on or before

June 30 of the fiscal year during which such election is in effect. Employees hired on or after July 1, 2014, who waive insurance shall only be eligible for fifty percent (50%) of the cost of the premium for individual coverage only, had such employee been eligible for the same on or before June 30<sup>th</sup> of the fiscal year during which such election is in effect.

Any election not to participate shall continue in effect unless revoked within the first two weeks of any fiscal year. Any payments under this section shall be prorated on a monthly basis for any employee who works less than a full year. Any employee who has elected not to participate in the health insurance coverage may change his/her election during the fiscal year subject to the enrolment requirements of the insurance carriers, only upon showing that such employee is no longer covered by his or her spouse's health insurance program. Effective July 1, 2015, employees otherwise covered by Town of Griswold or Town of Griswold Board of Education Insurance shall not be eligible for this waiver stipend.

#### Section 14.5

The Town will maintain procedures to allow for employee health insurance premium sharing payments to be made with pre-tax dollars in accordance with section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code.

#### Section 14.6

The parties agree that medical insurance shall be provided for domestic partners of employees in accordance with State law.

#### Section 14.7

Should a law be passed by the state that allows municipal employees or municipalities to join the state medical insurance plan or should the current MEHIP provisions be expanded, the parties agree to meet and discuss that option and if both parties agree, make the insurance change, if applicable.

If at any point it becomes possible for the Employer to purchase health insurance less expensively by participating in the State of Connecticut Employee Health Insurance Plan (s) or through MEHIP, negotiations may be reopened on health insurance only. Such reopener shall occur only upon written demand of the Union.

Should the parties not come to an agreement during said re-opener of health insurance; the issue will not be submitted to arbitration.

#### **ARTICLE XV - PENSION**

#### Section 15.1

Each employee shall participate in the CMERS.

#### ARTICLE XVI - DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURE AND DISMISSAL

#### Section 16.1

No employee shall be discharged or otherwise disciplined without just cause.

#### Section 16.2

Normally, disciplinary actions shall follow this order:

- a) Verbal warning
- b) Written warning
- c) Suspension
- d) Discharge

#### Section 16.3

All disciplinary actions including (a) above may be subject to the grievance procedure.

#### Section 16.4

Written and verbal warnings shall be removed from the employee's records three (3) years after said violation had occurred provided there have been no additional written or verbal warnings for the same offense during that period.

#### ARTICLE XVII - DISCRIMINATION

#### Section 17.1

The provisions of this contract shall be applied equally to all employees without discrimination because of age, sex, marital status, disability, race color, creed, national origin, political affiliation or Union membership and/or as otherwise provided in state and/or federal law.

For purposes of this Article, discrimination is defined as under state and/or federal employment law. An arbitrator shall not have jurisdiction to hear or decide (i.e., grievance shall not be arbitrable) a claim of discrimination which has been filed, prior to the filing of the grievance, in State or Federal Court and/or with a state or federal agency or commission including, but not limited to, the Connecticut Commission on Human Rights and Opportunities (CHRO), Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) and/or the State Board of Labor Relations.

#### Section 17.2

Nothing herein shall be construed as requiring any employee to reside within the Town of Griswold upon completion of the initial probationary period of employment with the employer.

#### **ARTICLE XVIII - SCOPE**

#### Section 18.1

The terms and provisions herein contained constitute the entire Agreement between the Town and the Union and shall supersede all previous communications, representations or agreements, either oral or written, between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof.

#### Section 18.2

Should a dispute, pertaining to negotiable matters not covered by this Agreement, arise between the parties hereto, the parties agree to discuss the matters.

#### Section 18.3

It is hereby agreed and understood that any employee benefit or prior practice or employer benefit or prior practice that has been in existence, shall continue to exist unless specifically superseded or eliminated by a provision of this Agreement.

#### ARTICLE XIX - MISCELLANEOUS

#### Section 19.1

- a) The employer agrees to provide each employee with a copy of the signed agreement within thirty (30) days after the execution date thereof.
- b) The employer agrees to provide new employees with a copy of this agreement at their time of hire.
- c) The employer agrees to provide the Council #4 Office of the Union with six (6) original, signed, contracts at the time of the signing.

Section 19.2

Copies of all job posting, and work rules shall be posted in each office where bargaining unit employees are employed, in an area customarily frequented by bargaining unit employees, and a copy of each will be provided to the Union President.

#### Section 19.3

The employer agrees to allow the Union use of the bulletin board for purposes of posting material relating to Union business.

#### Section 19.4

Each employee shall be paid by check weekly in accordance with existing practice. The Town shall have the right, with at least one hundred and twenty (120) days notice, to implement bi-weekly pay. Prior to implementation, the Town will meet with the Union to discuss the process for implementation.

#### Section 19.5

Any employee who provides at least two (2) weeks notice prior to resigning from the Town shall receive full pay for all unused vacation pay on the books remaining to his/her credit.

#### Section 19.6

All paid leave shall be computed as time worked.

#### Section 19.7

Each employee shall receive three (3) personal days annually without loss of pay.

#### Section 19.8

No employee hired by the Town on a temporary or interim, or to fill in for an ill or vacationing employee, or to subsidize, the forces during peak work periods, shall be paid more than the minimum rate of the classification for the position in which the employee is to be utilized.

#### Section 19.9

The Town may hire more than one permanent part-time employee within a department to perform bargaining unit work, provided that the permanent part-time employees are not performing the same work as any Bargaining Unit member in that department and does not reduce his/her hours, absent agreement between the Town and the Union.

#### Section 19.10

Any employee who wishes to further their education in a field directly related to their employment by taking a course, shall be allowed a payment of \$600.00 per semester. The employee must maintain a C or better grade point average and must attend a college or university or school of higher learning accredited by the State of Connecticut Board of Education. The employee must obtain written permission from the Board of

Selectman as to whether the course taken by the employee would be in the best interest of the Town. The Board's decision is non-grievable.

#### Section 19.11

The Union covenants and agrees that it will not use present as evidence in any forum a document known as the Swords report (job study). The Union also covenants and agrees not to offer or present as evidence any document, clause or agreement which references in any way the Swords Report or job study describing the Swords report.

#### **ARTICLE XX - LONGEVITY**

#### Section 20.1

Longevity payments for long and faithful service shall be paid to employees on the following basis:

Aggregate Year of Service	
5 years but less than 10 years	\$375.00
10 years but less than 15 years	\$475.00
15 years but less than 20 years	\$675.00
20 years and over	\$775.00

#### Section 20.2

The total longevity payment shall be determined as of June 30<sup>th</sup> annually and due and payable on November 30<sup>th</sup> annually.

#### Section 20.3

Only employees on the payroll on the specified date of longevity payment shall receive longevity payment, except that employees who retire during a fiscal year shall not be required to be on the payroll on the date the longevity payment is made. Employees who retire during a fiscal year shall receive a pro-rated longevity payment in consideration of the amount of time worked in that current fiscal year.

#### ARTICLE XXI - GRIEVANCE PROCDURE

#### Section 21.1

The basis for a grievance may result from a complaint concerning discharge, suspension, layoff or reduction in grade, or a conflict resulting from the application, meaning or interpretation of the provisions of this Agreement.

#### Section 21.2.

Should any employee(s) feel aggrieved an adjustment may be sought as follows:

Step 1: The employee shall present his/her grievance to his/her supervisor (provided that position is outside of the bargaining unit) within fifteen (15) working days after its occurrence. The supervisor will attempt to resolve the grievance at once or submit a written answer to the employee within five (5) working days. In the event the supervisor is a bargaining unit member or the First Selectman rendered the decision giving rise to the grievance, the grievance shall be submitted in writing directly to the First Selectman within fifteen (15) working days after its occurrence.

Step 2: If the employee is not satisfied with the decision of the supervisor he/she may, within five (5) working days after receiving the decision outlined in Step 1 above, reduce the grievance to writing and submit it to the First Selectman. The First Selectman will render a decision in writing within fifteen (15) days thereafter with copies to the employee(s) and the Union.

Step 3: In the event the matter is not resolved in Step 2 above, the Union only may submit the matter to the State Board of Mediation and Arbitration for arbitration in accordance with its rules, providing that the grievance must be submitted for arbitration within twenty (20) days following the Step 2 answer or when the answer from Step 2 should have been submitted.

Notwithstanding, the mediation services of the State Board of Mediation and Arbitration may be used at any step of the grievance procedure.

The parties may mutually agree to submit the grievance to the American Arbitration Association for arbitration, in which case the parties shall share the cost of arbitration equally.

The Town may unilaterally elect to have the grievance transferred to the American Arbitration Association for arbitration, in which case the Town shall assume all the costs associated with the arbitration.

If the grievance is heard before the American Arbitration Association, the parties agree to utilize M. Jackson Webber as the neutral arbitrator.

#### Section 21.3.

The jurisdiction and authority of the arbitrator and his/her opinion and award shall be confined to the interpretation and/or application of the provision(s) of this Agreement at issue between the Union and the Employer. He/She shall have no authority to add to, detract from, alter, amend, or modify any provision of this Agreement. The arbitrator shall not have jurisdiction to hear or decide more than one (1) grievance without the mutual consent of the Employer and the Union. The written award of the arbitrator on the merits of any grievance adjudicated within his jurisdiction and authority shall be final

and binding on the aggrieved employee, the Union, and the Employer. The standard of proof in all cases shall be based on a preponderance of the evidence.

#### Section 21.4

The employees will be allowed the necessary time off without loss of pay for the purposes of resolving grievances as provided in the foregoing procedures.

#### Section 21.5

Nothing herein shall be construed as prohibiting any employee from processing his/her own grievance up to and including Step 2 above. Only the Union will have the right to file for mediation and/or arbitration unless waived in writing by the Union.

#### **ARTICLE XXII - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS**

#### Section 22.1

Under applicable statute the rights, powers, and authority held by the Town under the Town Charter, or other lawful statutory provisions over matters involving the operations of the Town including, but not limited to, the management and the direction of the working force is the responsibility of the employer, including the right to hire, transfer, promote, retain, discipline, or discharge for proper cause, make reasonable rules, maintain efficient operation, to release employees due to lack of work, to determine the methods, processes used, introduce new or improved facilities, and extend, limit or curtail its operations, when in its sole discretion it may deem it advisable to do so, provided this will not be used for the purpose of discrimination against the Union or any employee or to avoid, or be inconsistent with, any of the provisions of this Agreement and in accordance with the provisions of the Municipal Employee Relations Act in all matters relevant to collective bargaining.

#### ATICLE XXIII - SAVINGS CLAUSE

#### Section 23.1

In the event that any article, section or portion of this Agreement is declared invalid by statute or legal process, then such specified article, section or portion specified to be invalid shall be deleted. However, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain effective and negotiations concerning the portion ruled invalid shall begin immediately between the parties.

#### **ARTICLE XXIV - REOPENER CLAUSE**

#### Section 24.1

This Agreement may be reopened on any provision provided that the Employer and the Union agree in writing to such effect.

#### Section 24.2

The employer and the Union negotiating committee agree to meet upon written request by either party for the purpose of interpretation, implementation and administration of this Agreement.

#### Section 24.3

This Agreement may be altered or modified only by mutual written agreement signed by the parties hereto and neither party shall request, or demand any provision which will in any manner abrogate the understanding set forth herein.

#### **ARTICLE XXV - DURATION**

#### Section 25.1

This Agreement shall become effective July 1, 2014 and shall remain in effect until June 30, 2019 and from year to year thereafter unless either party notifies the other no less than one hundred twenty (120) days from the expiration date above that it wishes to modify or change this Agreement in any manner.

#### Section 25.2

Upon receipt of such notice, meetings will begin within thirty (30) days to negotiate such amendments and/or changes.

#### Section 25.3

This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect during such negotiations in accordance with the provisions of the Municipal Employee Relations Act.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the par day of ANGUST , 2016.	ties hereto have set their hands this
FOR THE TOWN  8-31-11	FOR THE UNION  NAME OF THE UNION Signed: Union President
Signed: First Selectman Signed:	Signed: Union President  (Ournel Onell Caten  Signed:
Signed:	Dyla Dusub 12 Signed:
Signed:	Signed Staff Representative Council #4

## APPENDIX A – PAYROLL DEDUCTION Page 1 of 1

CONNECTICUT MUNICIPAL COUNCIL #4

AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES, AFLCIO

#### **AUTHORIZATION FOR PAYROLL DEDUCTION**

By: Please print last Name first Name Middle	
To: Name of Employer	
Effectivea sufficient amount to provious of monthly union dues, and/or service fees a deducted shall be paid to the Treasurer of La Federation of State, County and Municipal Ein effect in accordance with the working agreemployment.	de for the regular payment of the current rate as certified by the Union. The amount ocal 1303 of Council #4 of the American Employees. This authorization shall remain
Signature:	DO NOT PRINT
Street Address	Phone Number
City and State (Print)	Zip Code

# APPENDIX B - HOURLY WAGE SCHEDULE JULY 1, 2016

POSITION	START RATE	START RATE \$0.50 + WAGE ADJUST	START RATE WITH GWI OF 2.25%	RATE AFTER ONE YEAR	RATE AFTER ONE YEAR + \$0.50 WAGE	RATE AFTER ONE YEAR + GWI OF
		(IF ANY)	2.2576		ADJUST (IF ANY)	2.25%
Sanitarian	\$31.00	\$31.50	\$32.21	\$34.10	\$34.60	\$35.38
Bookkeeper	\$19.98	\$20.48	\$20.94	\$21.98	\$22.48	\$22.99
Social Worker	\$17.76	\$18.26	\$18.67	\$19.53	\$20.03	\$20.48
Clerk Part-Time	\$16.99	\$17.49	\$17.88	\$18.69	\$19.19	\$19.62
Assistant Assessor	\$16.68	\$17.18	\$17.57	\$18.34	\$18.84	\$19.26
Assistant Bookkeeper	\$16.67	\$17.17	\$17.56	\$18.34	\$18.84	\$19.26
Assistant Tax Collector	\$16.67	\$17.17	\$17.56	\$18.34	\$18.84	\$19.26
Assistant Town Clerk	\$16.68	\$17.18	\$17.57	\$18.34	\$18.84	\$19.26
Asst to the Building Official	\$16.68	\$17.18	\$17.57	\$18.34	\$18.84	\$19.26
Asst to the Town Planner	\$16.68	\$17.18	\$17.57	 \$18.34	\$18.84	\$19.26
Asst to Dir of Senior Citizens Center	\$10.51	\$11.01	\$11.26	\$11.56	\$12.06	\$12.33
Clerk - Full Time	\$15.69	\$16.19	\$16.55	\$17.26	\$17.76	\$18.16
Secretary to Assessor	\$15.69	\$16.19	\$16.55	\$17.26	\$17.76	\$18.16
Senior Citizens Bus Driver	\$12.80	\$13.30	\$13.60	\$14.08	\$14.58	\$14.91
Asst to Dir of Parks and Rec Youth & Family Services	\$10.82	\$11.32	\$11.57	\$11.90	\$12.40	\$12.68
Building Official (PT / Hourly)	\$37.22	\$37.22	\$38.06	\$40.94	\$40.94	\$41.86
Custodian	\$18.83	\$18.83	\$19.25	\$20.71	\$20.71	\$21.18

APPENDIX B

#### HOURLY WAGE SCHEDULE JULY 1, 2017

POSITION	START RATE	START RATE + \$0.50 WAGE ADJUST (IF ANY)	START RATE + GWI OF 2.25%	RATE AFTER ONE YEAR	RATE AFTER ONE YEAR + \$0.50 WAGE ADJUST (IF ANY)	RATE AFTER ONE YEAR + GWI OF 2.25%
Sanitarian	\$32.21	\$32.71	\$33.45	\$35.38	\$35.88	\$36.69
Bookkeeper	\$20.94	\$21.44	\$21.92	\$22.99	\$23.49	\$24.02
Social Worker	\$18.67	\$19.17	\$19.60	\$20.48	\$20,98	\$21.45
Clerk Part-Time	\$17.88	\$18.38	\$18.79	\$19.62	\$20.12	\$20.57
Assistant Assessor	\$17.57	\$18.07	\$18.48	\$19.26	\$19.76	\$20.20
Assistant Bookkeeper	\$17.56	\$18.06	\$18.47	\$19.26	\$19.76	\$20.20
Assistant Tax Collector	\$17.56	\$18.06	\$18.47	\$19.26	\$19.76	\$20.20
Assistant Town Clerk	\$17.57	\$18.07	\$18.48	\$19.26	\$19.76	\$20.20
Assistant to the Building Official	\$17.57	\$18.07	\$18.48	\$19.26	\$19.76	\$20.20
Assistant to the Town Planner	\$17.57	\$18.07	\$18.48	\$19.26	\$19.76	\$20.20
Asst to Dir of Senior Citizens Center	\$11.26	\$11.76	\$12.02	\$12.33	\$12.83	\$13.12
Clerk - Full Time	\$16.55	\$17.05	\$17.43	\$18.16	\$18.66	\$19.08
Secretary to Assessor	\$16.55	\$17.05	\$17.43	\$18.16	\$18.66	\$19.08
Senior Citizens Bus Driver	\$13.60	\$14.10	\$14.42	\$14.91	\$15.41	\$15.76
Asst to Dir of Parks and Rec Youth & Family Services	\$11.57	\$12.07	\$12.34	\$12.68	\$13.18	\$13.48
Building Official (PT/Hourly)	\$38.06	\$38.06	\$38.92	\$41.86	\$41.86	\$42.80
Custodian	\$19.25	\$19.25	\$19.68	\$21.18	\$21.18	\$21.66

APPENDIX B

#### HOURLY WAGE SCHEDULE JULY 1, 2018

POSITION	START RATE	START RATE + \$0.50 WAGE ADJUST (IF ANY)	START RATE + GWI OF 2.5%	CURRENT RATE AFTER ONE YEAR	RATE AFTER ONE YEAR + \$0.50 WAGE ADJUST (IF ANY)	RATE AFTER ONE YEAR + GWI OF 2.5%
Sanitarian	\$33.45	\$33.95	\$34.80	\$36.69	\$37.19	\$38.12
Bookkeeper	\$21.92	\$22.42	\$22.98	\$24.02	\$24.52	\$25.13
Social Worker	\$19.60	\$20.10	\$20.60	\$21.45	\$21.95	\$22.50
Clerk Part-Time	\$18.79	\$19.29	\$19.77	\$20.57	\$21.07	\$21.60
Assistant Assessor	\$18.48	\$18.98	\$19.45	\$20.20	\$20.70	\$21.22
Assistant Bookkeeper	\$18.47	\$18.97	\$19.44	\$20.20	\$20.70	\$21.22
Assistant Tax Collector	\$18.47	\$18.97	\$19.44	\$20.20	\$20.70	\$21.22
Assistant Town Clerk	\$18.48	\$18.98	\$19.45	\$20.20	\$20.70	\$21.22
Asst to the Building Official	\$18.48	\$18.98	\$19.45	\$20.20	\$20.70	\$21.22
Asst to the Town Planner	\$18.48	\$18.98	\$19.45	\$20.20	\$20.70	\$21.22
Asst to Dir of Senior Citizens Center	\$12.02	\$12.52	\$12.83	\$13.12	\$13.62	\$13.96
Clerk - Full Time	\$17.43	\$17.93	\$18.38	\$19.08	\$19.58	\$20.07
Secretary to Assessor	\$17.43	\$17.93	\$18.38	\$19.08	\$19.58	\$20.07
Senior Citizens Bus Driver	\$14.42	\$14.92	\$15.29	\$15.76	\$16.26	\$16.67
Asst to Dir of Parks and Rec Youth & Family Services	\$12.34	\$12.84	\$13.16	\$13.48	\$13.98	\$14.33
Building Official (PT/Hourly)	\$38.92	\$38.92	\$39.80	\$42.80	\$42.80	\$43.76
Custodian	\$19.68	\$19.68	\$20.17	\$21.66	\$21.66	\$22.20

# APPENDIX B - SALARIED WAGE SCHEDULE JULY 1, 2016 – JUNE 30, 2019

POSITION	7/1/2016	12/1/16	7/1/2017	7/1/2018
Town Planner	\$78,855.60	\$78,855.60	\$80,432.71	\$82,041.37
Assessor	\$54,908.40	\$54,908.40	\$56,006.57	\$57,126.70
Director Parks and Recreation/ Youth & Family Services	\$46,642.60	\$47,500.00	\$47,500.00	\$48,450.00
Director of Senior Citizens Center and Social Services Agent	\$46,044.60	\$47,500.00	\$47,500.00	\$48,450.00

#### APPENDIX C - INSURANCE SUMMARY OF BENEFITS

#### MEDICAL BENEFIT SUMMARY

Administered by UnitedHealthcare

Visit
www.osc.
ct.gov/
ctpartner
[click "provider
networks"]
to search
the list of
network
providers.

IN NETWORK		CT Partne w/ Health Enha	rship Plan
Deductible		Not applicable	Ł
Coinsurance		Not applicable	
Max Out-of-Pocket Limit		Not applicable	
Medical Office Visit		\$15 Co-pay	
Specialist Office Visit		\$15 Co-pay	
Vision Exams (one per cal	endar year)	\$15 Co-pay	
Inpatient Hospital		\$0 Co-pay	
Outpatient Surgical		\$0 Co-pay	
Emergency Room		\$35 Co-pay (w	vaived if admitted)
Urgent Care		\$15 Co-pay	
Walk in		\$15 Co-pay	
Lab/X-Ray High Cost Radiological &	Diagnostic Tests	\$0 Co-pay	
*Weived for enrollees in Health Enha Family in-network deductible.  PREVENTATIVE SE		CT Partne	*****************
Primary Care (Adult and Chil	d Wellness Exams)	\$0 Co-pay	···
Gynecologist Wellness		\$0 Со-рау	
Mammogram		\$0 Co-pay	
Lifetime Maximum	,	Unfimited	
PRESCRIPTION	***********************		
COVERAGE		ION-MAINTENANCE PRUGS	CONDITION DRUGS
Generic	\$5	\$5	<b>\$</b> O
Preferred/Listed Brand Name	\$10	\$20	<b>\$</b> 5
Non-Preferred/Non-Listed Brand Name	\$25	\$35	\$12,50
Annual Maximum	Unlimited	•	
OUT OF NETWOR	K	CT Partne	ership Plan ancement Program
Annual Deductible		\$300 individu	al/\$900 family
Coinsurance		20% of allowe	ble UCR charges
Max Out-of-Pocket Limit		\$2,300 individ	dual/\$4,900 family
Lifetime Maximum		Unlimited	

# ADDITIONAL MEDICAL BENEFIT INFORMATION

IN NETWORK	CT Partnership Plan w/ Health Enhancement Program		
Deductible	Not applicable*		
Acupuncture (20 visits/year)	\$15 Co-pay		
Chiropractic	\$0 Co-pay		
Nutritional Counseling (3 visits/year)	\$0 Co-pay		
Physical/Occupational Therapy	\$0 Co-pay		
Durable Medical Equipment	\$0 Co-pay		
Routine Hearing Screening (as part of an exam)	\$15 Co-pay		

Visit
www.osc.
ct.gov/
ctpartner
[click "provider
networks"]
to search
the list of
network
providers.

#### UnitedHealthcare/Oxford Contact Information

Live, knowledgeable customer service representatives are available for current State of Connecticut Partnership members toll-free at 800-385-9055 from 8am to 6pm EST, Monday through Friday.

If you prefer, you may also visit http://partnershipstateofct.welcometouhc.com to search for a participating physician or facility, to learn about your health plan, to find the status of claims, or obtain additional information about discount programs offered to State of Connecticut Partnership members.

Cigna Haailbaare Financiel Exhibitor: State of Connecticut-Enhanced Plan With HEP Effective Dater July 01, 2014



This is a currently of benefits for your destriction. All desirabless, plan maximums, sed service equation maximums (defor and occurrence) cross securations between in earliers of sealers.

Figure 1 Chine Core New York 1995 (47)	医型体的医疗系统形式 And	PUREL CONTROL OF THE PROPERTY
Onjendar Year Maximum (Chase I, B, HI, Procihation Expenses) (Dental Implanta)	\$3,000, Class I Applies Ho calendar year mes for Pesketental Mat \$500	\$3,000, Glass i Appères planance à Fericologial Scaling à Papel Planing
Calendar Year Declubible	\$500	2600
Par incritical	\$26	\$25
Per Fandy	\$76	575
Class I Expenses - Preventive & Diagnostic Care		
Oral Exons Classings	100%, No Deductible	188%, No Deducible Reimbursement based on Maximum Alayable Charge
Review X-Plana	/	resistance inferir pasen of the chimit has been possible
Fluorida Application		
Sealants Non-Rouline X-Reys	1	
NOT-RODING A-MBys		
Class II Expenses - Basic Restorative Care		
FIEngs	80%, After Deducable	80%, After Deductible
Space Maintainers (limited to non-orthodores transment) Emergency Cure to Fishere Pain		Reimbursement based on Maximum Allowable Change
One Suggery - Simple Extractions		
* Orat Surgery - All Except Simple Extraction		
Surgical Extraction of impacted Tooth Amelikation	1	
Anjestances Major Pariodontics		
Mixer Periodonics		
Hool Canal Therapy / Endodoniica		
Helines, Roberto, and Adjustments Repairs - Bridges, Cruters, and Johns		
Hebspa - Delignes audennes oblobas' entrans' stra strake		· ·
Brosh Biopsy	i .	
. •		
Class III Expenses - Major Restorative Care .		
Crowns / Islays / Onlays	67%, After Deduction	67%, After Decknifole
Crowd over Implant	. ,	
Etaloktu Sledifficalo Oroma		ReimburromerA baxed on Maximum Aloyabia Charge
Class IV Expenses - Orthodoniis		,
Coverage for Children & Addis Lifetino Makimum	56%, No Ortha Deductible \$1500	50%, No Oriho Deductible \$1500
roenuw teskujudi	\$ 1500	Reimbursement baxed on Naximum Allowable Charge
Cises Expenses 6 - Periodontal Maintenance		
	199% Ho deducible No Maximum	100% No deductible No teaximom
	Me tanyetten	Reimbercoment beased on Maximum Allowable Charge
Jass Expenses 7 - Prosthellos		
Bitiges	50% After Deductible	60% After Deductible
Denitries		Relimburement based on Hawinsten Alassable Charge
Class & Expenses - Scaling ans Roof Planing		
Scaling and Root Planing	, 48%, Alter Decketülle Ne Maskatun	BÓN, Aller Dainidhle
	No Winecuttii	No Maximum Relimbusement based on Nuxhiim Alowable Charge
Diags IX Expenses • Implants		
	50%, After Deckiellida	50%, After Daducible
Calendar Year Max*	S500 meximum	\$500 maximum
<u> </u>		Heimburreneni based on Maximum Atowalde Charge
Missing Tooth Provision	No linátetion	
Late Entrent Limit	No corerage until next open envaluent	
Pretreatment Review	Available on a Voluntary bosis when autonotro work in excess of \$200 to proposed.	
Out-of-Network Reimbursement	Wastimun Atoxabis Change	
Student/Dependent Age	19/19	
PODDZ (NSOD1 DNSF) Hebyork, Frapared by Underwilling.	<u></u>	D2/19/2014 12:56 PM

Cigna Healthcare Financial Exhibit for: State of Connecticut- Enhanced Plan with HEP Effective Date: July 01, 2014

#### Cigna Dental PPO / Indemnity Exclusions and Limitations:

Procedure

Prophylexis (cleanings)
Fluctide
X-Rays (routine)
X-Rays (non-routine)
Model

Miner Pario (non-surgical) minui Perio (nortzuigiosi Perio Surgery Crowns and iniays Prosinasia Ovar Implania

Exclusions and two periodontal cleanings per calender year two matters and two periodontal cleanings per calender year two matters year for people under 16
Diterdings: I per calender year Parcelander year Parcelander year Full month: I savery 5 calender year. Pancear: I every 5 calender year Psyable on by when in copylandion with Ortho workup Various limitations depending on the service Replacement every 7 years
I per every 7 years if transarviacable and cannot be repaired. Benefits are besed on the amount or payable for compressions mentals. No perceisin or white/leas.
Replacement every 7 years
Replacement every 7 years
Replacement every 7 years
Replacement every 7 years
Replacement overy 7 years

Bridges Dentures and Partials

Relines, Rebases Adjustments Reviewed if more than once

Adjustmenta Repuls - Bridges Repuls - Dentures Seatanta Space Meintolnara Allomato Banetik

Reviewed if more than one.

Reviewed if more than one.

Limited to posterior tooth. One treatment per tooth every three years up to age 16

Limited to posterior tooth. One treatment the tooth every three years up to age 16

When more than one overed Danial Service could provide suitable treatment based on common dental standards, Cligne Realthcare will determine the covered Danial Service on which payment will be based and the expenses that will be included as Covered Expenses.

- \*Services performed primarily for exametic reasons
  Regiscement of a bot or stolen appliance
  Regiscement of a bot or stolen appliance
  Regiscement of a bridge of dendre width filter years following the date of the original installation
  Replacement of a bridge of dendre width filter years following the date of the original installation
  Replacement of a bridge of dendre width can be made useable according to excepted dental standards
  Replacement of a bridge of dendre width can be made useable according to excepted dental standards
  Replacement of a bridge or retorations, other than full dentrues, whose main purpose is to change vertical dimension,
  diaphose or treat transitions or restorations, other than full dentrues, whose main purpose is to change vertical dimension,
  diaphose or treat transitions or restoration or sense products on a common dendre dendre or expending the upper and fower first, excend and third molans
  that registrations, precision or sense practices paid for
  Dendra services that to not meet common dendre standards
  Sorvices that are deemed to be medical sensiviess
  Sorvices and supplies received from a hospital
  Changes which the person is not legally required to pay
  Charges made by a hospital which performs terrifores for the U.S. Government if the charges are directly related to a condition
  connected to a military terrifore
  Experimental or investigational procedures and treatments
  Any bully resulting from, or in the course of, any employment for wage or profit
  Any bully resulting from, or in the course of, any employment for wage or profit
  Any bully resulting from, or in the course of, any employment for wage or profit
  Any bully resulting from, or in the course of, any employment for wage or profit
  Any bully resulting from, or in the course of, any employment for wage or profit
  Any bully resulting from, or in the course of, any employment for wage or profit
  Any bully resulting from, or in the course of, any employment for wage or profit
  Any bully resulting from, or in the course of, any employment

This benefit aummany highlighits some of the benefits available under the proposed plan. A complete description regarding the terms of coverage, exclusions and limitations, including legislated benefits, will be provided in your insurance certificate or plan description.

Benefits are insured and/or administered by Cigna HaalthCare.

Ciona is a rugisteria enviror mark, and the Theo of Life logo is a service mark, or Cigna Intelligence Property, Inc., Branced for use by Cigna Corporation and its operating subsidiaries. All products and across one provided by or through each operating subsidiaries and not by Cigna Corporation. Such operating subsidiaries include Cornecticity General Life Insurance Cornecticity, Cigna Health, Inc. and its subsidiaries. Cornecticity Cornectics, Cornectics, Inc., and Cigna Daniel Health, Inc. and Its subsidiaries.

Prepared by Underwilling.
Clona Core Nebvork (P0002 / NS801 DNSP)

03/13/2014 12:56 PM

## Use Maintenance Choice to Fill Your Long-Term Medications

#### ABOUT THE CVS CAREMARK RETAIL NETWORK

#### Will I receive a new ID card when I enroll in the Health Enhancement Program?

Yes. You will receive two prescription drug cards per family. Please show this new card to your pharmacist to ensure the pharmacy has updated information.

#### Do I only have to use a CVS/pharmacy?

CVS Caremark pharmacy network contains more than 67,000 participating retail pharmacy chains and independent pharmacies. You can use any participating pharmacy to fill your acute (short-term) medications (30 day supply or less).

For maintenance medications (long-term), you are allowed one 30 day -fill only at any participating retail pharmacy. After the first 30 day fill, you must fill your prescription through the CVS Caremark Mali Service Pharmacy, CVS/pharmacy or other pharmacies that participate in the State of Connecticut Maintenance Drug Network.

#### ABOUT MAIL SERVICE and the STATE OF CONNECTICUT MAINTENANCE DRUG NETWORK

#### Where can I fill maintenance prescriptions?

The choice is yours. You can order 90-day supplies of maintenance medications at:

Mail Service: Register for mail service by phone (FastStart® toll free at 1-800-875-0867 from 8am-8:30pm Mon – Friday) or log on to www.caremark.com and sign in or register, if necessary. Have your Prescription Card number, the names of your medicines, your doctor's information and your payment information ready. We handle the rest.

CVS/pharmacy – Visit your local CVS/pharmacy. If you are currently using CVS/pharmacy to fill your maintenance medications, you can continue to do so. Your CVS/pharmacist can dispense your 90-day supply of a maintenance medication for one copay.

State of Connecticut Maintenance Drug Network — Fill your maintenance medications at a participating State of Connecticut Maintenance Drug Network Pharmacy. If your pharmacy is participating in the State of Connecticut Maintenance Drug network, you can use the pharmacy to dispense your 90-day supply of a maintenance medication.

#### How long does it take for my prescriptions to arrive by mail?

Please allow 7-10 days for delivery from the time the order is placed. You can check your refill status on-line or by calling toll-free at 1-800-318-2572. Please note: Mail order packaging accommodates all temperature sensitive drugs.

## How should I ask my doctor or other prescriber to write my prescription in order to receive the maximum benefit for my maintenance medication?

Remind your doctor or other prescriber to write a "90-day supply plus refills," when clinically appropriate, for maintenance medications. CVS Caremark must fill your prescription for the exact quantity of medication that your doctor or healthcare provider prescribes, up to your plan design limit. When you need to take your maintenance medication right away, ask your doctor or other prescriber for two prescriptions:

- \*The first for up to a 30-day supply
- The second for up to a 90-day supply, with refills when clinically appropriate

Have the short-term supply filled immediately at any CVS Caremark participating retail pharmacy. Then you have the choice to fill your maintenance medication using Mail Service Pharmacy, CVS/pharmacy, or a pharmacy participating in the State of Connecticut Maintenance Drug Network.

#### ABOUT THE CVS CAREMARK DRUG LIST

#### What is a drug list?

It is a list of preferred prescription medications that have been chosen because of their clinical effectiveness and safety. This list is typically updated every three months. The drug list promotes the use of preferred brand-name medications and generic medications whenever possible. Generic medications are therapeutically equivalent to brand-name medications and must be approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) for safety and effectiveness. Generally, generic medications cost less than brand-name medications. You can get a drug list by either visiting www.caremark.com or by calling Customer Care toll-free at 1-800-318-2572.

#### Where can I get a drug list brochure?

You can get a drug list brochure by visiting Caremark.com or by calling a Customer Care Representative toll-free at 1-800-318-2572. To save money, have your doctor or other prescriber choose a generic or preferred brand-name medication from the CVS Caremark Drug List, if appropriate. You may want to take the list with you when you visit your doctor or other prescriber.

1150-06\_MUIA\_60-0613



State of Connecticut P Effective Date: July 01, 2019 This is a summary of breakle for your v	ision of an		
<del>deresamenta en marra en en en</del> Benefit	in-yapkork	Out-of-Network	
Malariele Copay	\$0	. N/A	
Single Vision Lenses	Covered in Full	\$40 Attowance	
Bifocul Lonsos	Covered in Full	. SSE Allowance	
Trifocal Lenses	Covered in Foil	\$75 Allowance	
Lenkular Lenses	Covered in Full	\$100 Alloyance	
Contact Lansus (Retail Allowance)	1	1	
Elective	\$360 Allowance	\$345 Alloyanca	
Therapedic	Covered in Full	SB46 Allowence	
Frame (Retall Allowance)	\$175 Allowance	\$ \$26 Allowation	

Frequency is 12 months for lenses, contact tenses, and frames.

· , · · · , · ·

Frequency is 12 months for lenses, contact tenses, and frames.

In-Abstract Benefits include:

One pair of prescription plastic or glass tenses, all ranges of prescriptions (powers and prisms)

Lans Options:

Standard Polycationate; covered for under 18 years of age; min. 20% save, \$40 eut-of-pocket max. for adults

Overlate tenses; covered under plan

Ross This; #1 and #2 - covered under plan

Solid This; min. 20% save, at 60 eut-of-pocket max.

Gradient This; \*22 out-of-pocket max.

Gradient This; \*22 out-of-pocket max.

Standard and inheritive conding; min. 20% save, \$46 out-of-pocket max.

Standard and inheritive conding; min. 20% save, \$46 out-of-pocket max.

Standard and inheritive conding; min. 20% save, \$46 out-of-pocket max.

Standard serial fully Coulting; min. 20% save, \$46 out-of-pocket max.

Standard serial fully Coulting; min. 20% save, \$46 out-of-pocket max.

Standard and inheritive conding; min. 20% save, \$46 out-of-pocket max.

Standard serial fully Coulting; min. 20% save, \$46 out-of-pocket max.

Standard and inheritive conding; min. 20% save, \$46 out-of-pocket max.

Standard and inheritive conding; min. 20% save, \$46 out-of-pocket max.

Standard and inheritive conding; min. 20% save, \$46 out-of-pocket max.

Standard and inheritive conding; min. 20% save, \$46 out-of-pocket max.

Standard and inheritive conding; min. 20% save, \$46 out-of-pocket max.

Standard and inheritive conding; min. 20% save, \$46 out-of-pocket max.

Standard and inheritive conding; min. 20% save, \$46 out-of-pocket max.

Standard and inheritive conding; min. 20% save, \$46 out-of-pocket max.

Standard and inheritive conding; min. 20% save, \$46 out-of-pocket max.

Standard and inheritive conding; min. 20% save, \$46 out-of-pocket max.

Standard and inheritive conding; min. 20% save, \$46 out-of-pocket max.

Standard and inheritive conding; min. 20% save, \$46 out-of-pocket max.

Standard and inheritive conding; min. 20% save, \$46 out-of-pocket min.

One save, of conding min.

Standard and inheritive conding min. 20% save, \$46 ou

To Locate a Provider;

1. www.chma.com Ordine Provider Directory;
Click on "Find a Dootor" at the top of the page.
Choose the "Eye Doctor" radio button and enteryour search criteria.
2. www.myClipn.com: You can search for a provider by name, specially or location after you enroll for coveringe and your plan has taken effect.

Clgna.

## APPENDIX D - REQUEST FOR VACATION FORM

## REQUEST FOR VACATION



This form must be used when an employee wishes to use five or more consecutive vacation days. Please fill out this form at your earliest possible convenience. This form must be signed by your department head which will confirm there is no issue with the office being covered. The form will then be submitted to the finance department for verification of availability of time requested. The form will then be sent to the First Selectman to sign off and then returned to the employee, to finalize the procedure. The time is not considered to be approved until the form has been completely filled out and returned to the employee.

\*It is understood that unforeseen emergencies may arise in which you may have to use your vacation time. If an emergency arises and you will be out for more than five consecutive days which you would like deducted from your vacation time, you must verbally notify the First Selectman immediately and complete this form and hand it in upon your return to work.

Name of Employee:	
Department:	
#of Work Days Requested:	
Dates Requested:	
Signature of Employee	
Signature of Department Head:	 _
Availability Verified by Finance:	
Signature of First Selectman:	

## MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) RE: ERIN HOUK

# MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) RE: ERIN HOUK

## MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU)

#### BETWEEN THE

## TOWN OF GRISWOLD

-AND-

### LOCAL 1303-133, COUNCIL #4, AFSCME (TOWN HALL EMPLOYEES)

THIS AGREEMENT between the Town of Griswold ("Town"), Local 1303-133, Council #4, AFSCME ("Union"), and Erin Houk ("Employee") is made and entered into the day and year signed below, and provides as follow:

 The Town and Union are parties to a collective bargaining agreement with the term July 1, 2013-June 30, 2014 ("CBA"). Section 14.4 in the CBA reads as follows:

Each employee may elect to not participate in the health insurance coverage. Any such election not to participate shall be made in writing and except as herein provided shall be irrevocable for the remainder of the applicable fiscal year.

Employees making such election shall be paid a stipend of fifty (50) percent (50%) of the cost of the premiums for coverage for which such employee would otherwise have been eligible on or before June 30 of the fiscal year during which such election is in effect. Employees hired on or after July 1, 2014, who waive insurance shall only be eligible for fifty percent (50%) of the cost of the premium for individual coverage only, had such employee been eligible for the same on or before June 30<sup>th</sup> of the fiscal year during which such election is in effect.

Any election not to participate shall continue in effect unless revoked within the first two weeks of any fiscal year. Any payments under this section shall be prorated on a monthly basis for any employee who works less than a full year. Any employee who has elected not to participate in the health insurance coverage may change his/her election during the fiscal year subject to the enrolment requirements of the insurance carriers, only upon showing that such employee is no longer covered by his or her spouse's health insurance program. Employees otherwise covered by Town of Griswold or Town of Griswold Board of Education Insurance shall not be eligible for this waiver stipend.

- 2. The parties hereby agree that it was the intent of the Town to exclude Erin Houk from the language which states "Employees hired on or after July 1, 2014, who waive insurance shall only be eligible for fifty percent (50%) of the cost of the premium for individual coverage only, had such employee been eligible for the same on or before June 30<sup>th</sup> of the fiscal year during which such election is in effect."
- 3. Thereby, the parties agree that Ms. Houk's option to be paid the stipend in lieu of insurance coverage is grandfathered.
- 4. It is expressly understood between the parties that this MOU has been created on a non-precedent setting basis but that its terms are nonetheless binding on the parties and that the MOU may be used by the parties to enforce its terms.
- 5. This MOU constitutes the entire understanding by and between the parties regarding the subject matter herein, and specifically supersedes all conversations, discussions, representations and agreements by and between the parties regarding the subject matter herein.

For the Union

Lot tie Lown.	1 of the orner.
atres Dugge	
Eileen Duggan	Scott Soares
Labor Counsel	Staff Representative

mployee:

Cup Dub Van President:

Man hould Shannon Webster

# MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) RE: COMP. TIME

# MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) RE: COMP. TIME

# MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU)

#### BETWEEN THE

#### TOWN OF GRISWOLD

#### -AND-

## LOCAL 1303-133, COUNCIL #4, AFSCME (TOWN HALL EMPLOYEES)

THIS AGREEMENT between the Town of Griswold ("Town"), Local 1303-133, Council #4, AFSCME ("Union"), and Shannon Webster ("Employee") is made and entered into the day and year signed below, and provides as follow:

- The Town and Union are parties to a collective bargaining agreement with the term July 1, 2013-June 30, 2014 ("CBA").
- 2. Employee is a member of the bargaining unit.
- 3. Article V Hours of work, Overtime addresses compensation for hours worked outside of an employee's regularly scheduled hours of work.
- 4. Employee regularly works six (6) hours per day. On or about July 2014, Employee was subpoenaed to attend Superior Court and appeared in Superior Court on a matter related to her job duties and responsibilities. Employee worked six and one half (6.5) hours, and was compensated at straight time for all hours worked. Despite the clear contract language in Section 5.3 that time and one half (1.5) is paid only after an employee works more than seven (7) hours in a day, the Union maintains that the Town traditionally has paid employees time and one half (1.5) for all hours worked outside the regular hours of work.
- 5. Pending ratification of the CBA currently being negotiated (but in no case later than December 31, 2014), the Town will compensate members at time and one half (1.5) for all hours worked outside the regular hours of work and/or allow employees to earn compensatory time as has been allowed. Pending ratification of the CBA currently being negotiated (but in no case later than December 31, 2014), the Town will implement the clear language in Section 5.3 that employees must work more than (7) hours in a day to then receive time and one half (1.5) for hours in excess of seven (7) hours in a day; the Town further will not provide employees with compensatory time.

- The Employer has compensated Employee at her time and one half rate for the one half (.5) hour worked above her regular hours of work on July 2014.
- 7. a) The parties agree and acknowledge that Section 5.3 otherwise is clear in providing that an employee must actually work more than seven (7) hours in a day to be eligible for time and one half (1.5) pay for actual hours worked in excess of seven (7) hours in a day. The parties agree and acknowledge that this clear language will be implemented and enforced pursuant to paragraph 5, above, thus extinguishing any past practice claim by the Union as to receipt of time and one half (1.5) pay for hours actually worked less than seven (7) in one day. The Union further waives any claims for time and one half pay, subject to the time frame set forth in paragraph 5, above, for any hours worked by an employee outside his/her regular hours, but less than seven (7) hours in one day.
  - b) The parties further agree that the CBA does not provide for the earning of compensatory time. Section 5.3 as noted in (a), is clear regarding pay for hours actually worked outside of an employee's regularly scheduled hours of work. Any practice of earning compensatory time shall cease, subject to the time frame set forth in paragraph 5, above.
- 8. Individuals with compensatory time as of the ratification date shall be frozen at the total amount of pay at the time of ratification. Employees with compensatory time as of ratification may choose to be paid out as soon as reasonably practicable at the rate of one (1) hour straight pay for every three (3) hours of compensatory time or in full pursuant to a schedule of payments (twelve (12) equal monthly payments from the date of election). Employees must make election within thirty (30) calendar days of signing of the CBA by both parties.
- 9. It is expressly understood between the parties that this MOU has been created on a non-precedent setting basis but that its terms are nonetheless binding on the parties and that the MOU may be used by the parties to enforce its terms.
- 10. This MOU constitutes the entire understanding by and between the parties regarding the subject matter herein, and specifically supersedes all conversations, discussions, representations and agreements by and between the parties regarding the subject matter herein.

For the Town:

Eileen Duggan

Labor Counsel

For the Unjon:

Scott Soares Staff Representative

## MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) RE: BEVIN/AUBIN

## MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) RE: BEVIS/AUBIN

## MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU)

#### BETWEEN THE

#### TOWN OF GRISWOLD

#### -AND-

# LOCAL 1303-133, COUNCIL #4, AFSCME (TOWN HALL EMPLOYEES)

THIS AGREEMENT between the Town of Griswold ("Town"), Local 1303-133, Council #4, AFSCME ("Union"), and Erika Bevis ("Ms. Bevis"), and Ryan Aubin ("Mr. Aubin") is made and entered into the day and year signed below, and provides as follow:

 The Town and Union are parties to a collective bargaining agreement with the term July 1, 2013-June 30, 2014 ("CBA"). The recognition clause in the CBA currently reads as follows:

Section 1.1

The employer recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive representative with respect to all matters of wages, hours and other conditions of employment for all employees of the Griswold Town Hall working 120 days per year or more but excluding all elected officials, and employees of the Griswold Public Health Nursing Association.

Section 1.2

All collective bargaining shall be conducted by authorized representatives of the Union and authorized representatives of the Town.

Section 1.3

A part-time employee shall be defined as an employee working less than 20 hours per week. Part-time employees are not eligible for insurance benefits contained in Article XIV of the contract. Employees who are regularly scheduled to work less than thirty five (35) hours per week shall receive a pro-rated share of all other benefits (excluding insurance) contained in the contract.

- 2. Effective upon ratification of the contract currently under negotiations, the following positions will be voluntarily recognized as part of this bargaining unit: Assistant to the Director of Parks and Recreation / Youth & Family Services and Director of Parks and Recreation/Youth & Family Services. The persons currently holding the positions are Erika Bevis and Ryan Aubin.
- 3. The recognition clause shall be amended to read as follows:

Section 1.1

The employer recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive representative with respect to all matters of wages, hours and other conditions of employment for all employees of the Griswold Town Hall hired to work and working fifteen (15) or more hours per week on a regular basis but excluding all elected officials.

Section 1.2

All collective bargaining shall be conducted by authorized representatives of the Union and authorized representatives of the Town.

Section 1.3

A part-time employee shall be defined as an employee working less than fifteen (15) hours per week. Part-time employees are not eligible for insurance benefits contained in Article XIV of the contract. Employees who are regularly scheduled to work less than thirty five (35) hours per week shall receive a pro-rated share of all other benefits (excluding insurance) contained in the contract.

- Ms. Bevis generally is scheduled to work an average of nineteen and one-half (19 ½) hours per week.
- 5. The amount of any leave for which Ms. Bevis is entitled shall be based on a nineteen and one-half (19 ½) hour work week. Should Ms. Bevis's hours worked for fiscal year 2014 2015 be fewer than 1014 (19.5 times 52), her amount of leave for 2015 2016 shall be based on her annual hours for 2014 2015 divided by 52.
- Vacation leave and longevity pay, pursuant to Article IX and Article XX of the contract, will be based on Ms. Bevis's total years of employment.
- 7. Ms. Bevis shall not be entitled to compensation at time and one-half until she has worked over thirty-five (35) hours in a week.
- 8. For purposes of bargaining unit seniority and bumping rights, the date of entry into the bargaining unit (date of ratification of contract) shall be the effective seniority date for Ms. Bevis and Mr. Aubin.
- 9. The parties agree that all aspects of the terms and conditions of employment for the positions of Director of Parks and Recreation/Youth & Family Services and Assistant to the Director of Parks and Recreation/Youth & Family Services shall otherwise be subject to negotiation/arbitration.
- 10. It is expressly understood between the parties that this MOU has been created on a non-precedent setting basis but that its terms are nonetheless binding on the parties and that the MOU may be used by the parties to enforce its terms.
- 11. This MOU constitutes the entire understanding by and between the parties regarding the subject matter herein, and specifically supersedes all conversations, discussions, representations and agreements by and between the parties regarding the subject matter herein.

For the Town:

Mus Magan

Eileen Duggan

Labor Counsel

Employee:

Whien President:

Shannon Webster

Employee:

# MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) RE: SALARIED EMPLOYEES

# MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) RE: SALARIED EMPLOYEES

#### BETWEEN THE

#### TOWN OF GRISWOLD

#### -AND-

### LOCAL 1303-133, COUNCIL #4, AFSCME (TOWN HALL EMPLOYEES)

THIS AGREEMENT between the Town of Griswold ("Town"), Local 1303-133, Council #4, AFSCME ("Union"), and the following employees: Mario Tristany, Evelyn Spagnolo, Ryan Aubin and Tina Falck ("Employees"), is made and entered into the day and year signed below, and provides as follow:

- 1. The Town and Union are parties to a collective bargaining agreement with the term July 1, 2014-June 30, 2018. The parties are in the midst of ratifying the terms of a reopener to that agreement, which would extend the term to July 1, 2014-June 30, 2019 ("CBA").
- 2. Employees are all full time employees of the bargaining unit and hold the following four (4) positions: 1) Town Planner, 2) Assessor, 3) Director of Parks and Récreation/Youth and Family Services and 4) Director of Senior Citizens Center and Social Services Agent. In the event the position of Building Official becomes a full time position, the new employee or the incumbent, shall be subject to the terms of this MOU.
- 3. The parties have agreed, consistent with state and federal wage and hour laws, to convert the hourly, non-exempt positions of <u>full-time</u> Town Planner, Assessor, Director of Parks and Recreation/Youth and Family Services and Director of Senior Citizens Center and Social Services Agent to salaried exempt positions as of July 1, 2016. In order to transition these employees, the parties have negotiated, during the reopener, salaries that consider the amount of premium pay and/or overtime previously earned by these positions under the applicable collective bargaining agreement.
- 4. Article V, Section 5.1 of the CBA (Hours of Work, Overtime) provides that the basic work week is thirty-five (35) hours, Monday through Friday.
- 5. Article V, Section 5.2 of the CBA provides as follows:

The basic work week shall be seven (7) hours per day Monday through Friday, between the hours of 8:30 A.M. and 4:00 P.M., with one-half (1/2) hour unpaid for lunch.

Employees may be required to engage in activities necessitated by their classification outside of the regularly scheduled work hours, i.e., evening meetings.

The Town reserves the right to change the basic schedule (with two weeks written notice to the Union) to the following: The work week shall be seven (7) hours per day Monday through Wednesday, between the hours of 8:30 a.m. and 4:00 p.m., with one-half (1/2) hour unpaid for lunch. On Thursday the hours shall be extended to 6:30 p.m. and on Friday the hours shall be reduced to 1:00 p.m. This extended hour program for Thursdays shall not affect Senior Center employees who shall remain on the basic work week schedule set forth in sentence 1 of this section. Employees working the extended hours set forth above for Thursday shall not be entitled to receive overtime pay under section 5.3. Employees working the extended hours set forth above for Thursday shall receive a third (3<sup>rd</sup>) fifteen (15) minute break period which will be staggered among department employees in order to insure coverage for citizens coming into said departments. Employees working the reduced hours will only receive one (1) fifteen (15) minute break. Leave time taken under the Thursday extended day schedule set forth above shall be calculated in hourly increments. Finally, the Town shall have the absolute right to return to the basic work week schedule set forth in sentence 1 of this section provided it gives the Union two (2) weeks written notice of said changes.

6. Article V, Section 5.3 of the CBA provides as follows:

Employees who are assigned to work outside their regularly scheduled work hours by the First Selectman or because of requirements of their positions in meeting public needs, shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half their hourly rate for all hours worked outside their regularly scheduled work hours (in no cases less than seven (7) consecutive hours in any one day) with the approval of First Selectman. The First Selectman must approve all employees' attendance at evening meetings.

Director of Parks and Recreation/Youth & Family Services, Assistant to the Director of Parks and Recreation / Youth and Family Services, Director of Senior Citizens Center and Social Services Agent, Social Worker and Assistant to Director of Senior Citizens Center may be required to perform work on weekends consistent with scheduled program events. During such weeks, the First Selectman may, with two (2) weeks prior notice, alter the employee's regular work schedule for that week such that program events fall within the weekly number of regularly scheduled work hours for the position.

7. The parties agree that effective July 1, 2016, Article V, Sections 5.1, 5.2 and 5.3 of the CBA is no longer applicable to the full-time positions of Town Planner, Assessor, Director of Parks and Recreation/Youth and Family Services and Director of Senior Citizens Center and Social Services. Rather, the following language shall apply to Employees:

The full-time positions of Town Planner, Assessor, Director of Parks and Recreation/Youth and Family Services and Director of Senior Citizens Center and Social Services Agent ("exempt employees") agree that they perform as executive, administrative and/or professional employees and, as such, are expressly exempted by the Fair Labor Standards Act and related state laws from the requirement of paid overtime. These exempt employees may be required to regularly engage in activities necessitated by their classification outside of normal business hours, i.e., evening meetings. These exempt employees are accountable to the Town and the public and, as such, employees

shall use the time card system utilized by all other bargaining unit members. Failure to maintain accurate time records may result in discipline.

The work schedules for the Town Planner, Assessor, Director of Parks and Recreation/Youth and Family Services and Director of Senior Citizens Center and Social Services Agent shall be solely determined by the Town. The Town will notify the employee(s) and Union of any changes to the work schedule with two (2) weeks prior notice.

Employees must comply with Article IX and Article X of the CBA regarding the use of vacation and sick leave. The parties agree that Employees shall work during normal work hours as determined by the Town and must use their vacation and sick leave in the same manner as all other bargaining unit members.

Exempt employees shall submit to the First Selectman or his/her designee a listing of regular night meetings which they are required to attend. The First Selectman or his/her designee must approve all employees' attendance at evening meetings. Moreover, in the event any exempt employee must perform work on weekends consistent with scheduled events, the First Selectman or his/her designee may, with two (2) weeks prior notice, alter the employee's regular work schedule for that week.

- 8. Article V, Sections 5.4 through 5.6 of the CBA (renumbered under the reopener to Sections 5.5 through 5.7) shall not apply to full-time positions of Town Planner, Assessor, Director of Parks and Recreation/Youth and Family Services and Director of Senior Citizens Center and Social Services.
- 9. The parties agree that the job descriptions for the Director of Senior Citizens Center and Social Worker positions will be merged into one job description and called the Director of Senior Citizens Center and Social Services Agent. In addition, the duties for this position will include serving as the Municipal Agent for the Elderly. As such, the salary for this position takes into account the \$7,000 currently received by Ms. Falck as a separate stipend, and Ms. Falck will no longer receive a separate stipend for serving as Municipal Agent for the Elderly.

The parties further agree that if the State of Connecticut no longer mandates that the Town have a municipal agent for the elderly, the existing wage rate will be decreased by \$7,000.

- 10. The parties acknowledge and agree that under federal law as of December 1, 2016, one aspect of the test for salaried exempt employees is annual compensation of at least \$47,500. Two full-time positions Director of Parks and Recreation/Youth and Family Services and Director of Senior Citizens Center will be below \$47,500 after the application of general wage increases on July 1, 2016. In order to meet the threshold compensation amount for salaried exempt status, the compensation for these two positions shall increase per Exhibit A to this MOU.
- 11. It is expressly understood between the parties that this MOU has been created on a non-precedent setting basis but that its terms are nonetheless binding on the parties and that the MOU may be used by the parties to enforce its terms.

This MOU constitutes the entire understanding by and between the parties regarding the subject matter herein, and specifically supersedes all conversations, discussions, representations and agreements by and between the parties regarding the subject matter herein.

12. The parties agree that they will meet in six (6) months (during the month of January 2017) to review the hours worked by Employees and determine whether any salary adjustments are necessary. In the interim, the Town agrees to provide the Union with a monthly breakdown of Employees' hours.

adjustments are necessary. In the interim, the Town agrees to provide the Union with monthly breakdown of Employees' hours.

For the Town:

For the Union:

te: 8-31-16

Kevin Skulczyck, First Selectman

Mario Tristany, Town Planner

Scott Shares, Staff Representative

Evelyn/Spagnolo, Assessor

Employees:

Ryan Aubin, Director of Parks and Recreation/Youth and Family Services

Tina Falck, Director of Senior Citizens Center, and Social Services Agent

Shannon Webster, Union President

## EXHIBIT A - SALARIED WAGE SCHEDULE

# JULY 1, 2016 - JUNE 30, 2019

POSITION	7/1/2016	12/1/16	7/1/2017	7/1/2018
Town Planner	\$78,855.60	\$78,855.60	\$80,432.71	\$82,041.37
Assessor	\$54,908.40	\$54,908.40	\$56,006.57	\$57,126.70
Director Parks and Recreation/ Youth & Family Services	\$46,642.60	\$47,500.00	\$47,500.00	\$48,450.00
Director of Senior Citizens Center and Social Services Agent	\$46,044.60	\$47,500.00	\$47,500.00	\$48,450.00

SUBJECT TO THE APPROVAL OF THE FINANCE DIRECTOR

## SIDE LETTER RE: HOLIDAY PAY

#### SIDE LETTER RE: HOLIDAY PAY March 31, 2815

MAN E. HARL Harris & Bernston Maw, Cathona Jan Louing II District to see Eyrik Jego Ja 85-24, 160 Comba k seda DE LENY James F. Breway Jane T (was si 上的內容和缺乏計 Active C Sure Marie Paris Chicket & Selton int C teri

in Counti Maria Salah Mr. Scott Scares Service Representative AFSCME, Council 4 444 E Main Sirect New Britain CY 061161

Re: Town of Criswold -and- Local 1303-133, Council 4, AFSCME Our File No.: 51184

Dear Mr. Scares,

This correspondence is intended to serve as a side letter to the July 1, 2014. June 30, 2016 Collective Bergshing Agreement between the Town of Griswold ("Town") and Local 1303-133, Council 4, AFSCME, AFL-CIO ("Union") regarding part-time employees.

The parties have agreed that a part-time employee shall receive holiday pay only on those days that the holiday falls on his/her regularly scheduled work day. For example:

During the week of Thanksgiving, an employee regalarly solveduled to work Monday. Tuesday and Wednesday for six (6) hours each day, will work his/har regularly scheduled hours of work and not receive any additional holiday pay for Thanksgiving and/or the Day After Thanksgiving. During the week of Labor Day, the employee will receive six (8) hours of holiday pay on Monday, and then will work six (6) hours on Tuesday and Wednesday.

All other terms and conditions of the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the Town and the Union for the period July 1, 2014 – June 30, 2018, remain in full force and effect and are applicable to this Agreement.

Eleen Diggsor/ Labor Counsel

Scott Scares Staff Representative